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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The barracks are located a block north of the new Kentucky State Capitol (built in 1906) at the
south end of the valley in which Frankfort is laid out. The barrack buildings, situated at the
base of the hills, but above the Kentucky River, are set along a major north-south street
which descends into Frankfort from the Capitol area (originally outside the town).

The buildings were constructed in one square block bounded on the north by New Street, on
the south by Coke Street, on the east by Shelby Street, and on the west by Woodland Avenue.

A series of three brick barracks descend the west side of Shelby Street and three additional
buildings, at their rear facing the opposite side of the block, descend the east side of Woodland
Avenue. The parade ground was located between these two rows of buildings, but is now
cluttered with garages, sheds and other intrusions. Two modern houses have been built
between several of the barracks (see #3 and #6 on the sketch map).

The barracks' small scale is somewhat startling in a middle-class residential neighborhood
of mixed age including some buildings that may have originally been a part of the military
complex. The barracks are grouped in pairs with one group of six units. Most have a central
door flanked by a fairly long narrow window (see photo 1), All the original openings on the
main floor have shallow curved arches of single headers, with a few doors having transoms.
Those on the basement level have plain flat stone lintels. The facade and sides are laid in
common bond. The roofs slope away from the front, 1nberrupted by a number of irregularly
spaced brick chimneys.

The front porches vary. Several of the structures have high porches on the first story. The
slope of the ground allows for full '"English basements' above ground while others are set
directly at ground level. Several porches have turned posts and brackets. A pair of high
porches has simple wooden pillars. Similar pillars support the continuous roof across the
concrete-floored porch on a pair of houses now painted white (see photo 1). From the
incidence of surviving porches, it would appear that the simpler wooden posts and balustrades
are original, and that the turned posts and brackets were a turn-of-the~century adornment.

While the buildings were being used as barracks, they were heated by stoves and grates. The
rooms were well lighted, having windows opposite one another. The walls were white-washed.
The kitchens, mess rooms and cellars were located in the English basements.

The barracks, today, make very comfortable apartments. Small additions have been made to
the back of all the buildings. In spite of minor variations anﬁﬁe intrusions the overall
efféct of the barracks is of modesty and un1form1ty, a stnkmg contrast to the splendor of the
nearby Beaux-Arts Capitol. :
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The barracks, which consist of six one-story structures on raised basements, now integrated
with the modest residential area adjacent to the monumental Beaux-Arts State Capitol, are a
rare example of military architecture of the post-Civil War period in Kentucky. The barrack

buildmgs were erected in 1871 by Alexander Goldsm1th Brawner, a master mason. They were
built specifically for and leased to the Federal Government to house federal troops stationed in

Frankfort from 1871 to 1876.

- Kentucky's politics.

The troops were stationed in Frankfort as a holdover from the
Reconstruction Era, the period immediately after the war when the Democratic party

..dominated

Alexander Biawner learned his craft from his great-grandfather who is reputed to have helped
Gideon Shryock construct the famous free~standing sthircase in the Old State Capitol of Kentudky.
Brawner constructed and leased the barrack buildings plus five acres of land to the Federal Gov-
ernment, from January 1, 1872, to December 31, 1873, for $250.00 a month. The following
notice appeared in the Frankfort Commonwealth November 10, 1871;

A,G. Brawner is now engaged in erecting three brick barracks on the Coleman
Spring lot which will be leased to the U.S. for the use of Federal troops for two
years. The barracks are to be large and substantial and so arranged that at the
expiration of the lease they can be turned into tenement houses.

This lease was renewed for two one-year periods for $200.00 a month. The records show that
the lease expired on June 30, 1876.

A hand-written description of the Frankfort Military Post, found in the National Archives Records,
gives a detailed account of the location and use of barracks:

The post of Frankfort, Kentucky, was established during the month of April,
1871, From April until December, 1871, the men lived in tents; the officers
resided at various places in the City of Frankfort.
The command consists of Head Quarters of 4th U.S. Infantry Staff and Band-
Companies D & K., 4th Infantry and one medical officer.
On the first of December the command moved into barracks situated in south

Frankfort, about one half mile from the City. These barracks were built by a

citizen of Frankfort on contract for the use of the troops.

comfortable quarters.

They are healthy and

(Continued)
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The records also describe brick barracks on Shelby Street and directly opposite on Woodland
Avenue. The parade ground was located in between. One of the structures held the adjutant's
office, the acting assistant quartermaster's office, the commissary store rooms, and quarters
for the band of the 4th U.S. Infantry. Another building was subdivided into twelve rooms and
was occupied by married soldiers. The company officers stayed in rented quarters in Frank-
fort. In addition to the barracks, the Archive records indicate that the Frankfort Post included
a frame guardhouse, bakery and hospital. It is not known for certain if these buildings remain
standing. The records also indicate that there were no bathing facilities for the troops, but the
soldiers bathed in the Kentucky River during the summer.

During the Civil War, Kentucky remained loyal to the Union, but the State was divided in its
sympathies, supplying troops to both sides. For a brief period there were two State Govern-
ments, one in Frankfort, loyal to the Union, and one in Russellville, loyal to the Confederacy.
In November 1862 Frankfort, the State capitol, was captured and held twice during the month
by each side. Federal troops recaptured the city at the end of the month and held it until the
end of the war. Although Kentucky was not included in a military district as part of Congress's
Reconstruction Act, it was under martial law, with federal troops occupying the State, from
the end of the war to October 1866. The suspension of the writ of habeas corpus was continued
in Kentucky for several months, even after it was restored in other border states.

After the war, Kentucky was overwhelmingly Democratic. The 1865-1866 legislature repealed
laws that disfranchised Confederate soldiers and that disqualified or punished persons in sym-
pathy with the rebellion. By 1866 the Kentucky government was in the hands of ex-Confederates.
The Radical Republicans had failed to gain a stronghold in Kentucky, as they had obtained in
other border states. They interpreted Kentucky's reluctance to support the Republican Party

as being disloyal and hostile to the Union. As a result the Radicals were pressuring Congress
to include Kentucky in the Reconstruction Act and make it into the sixth military district, although
it had never left the Union. Even though Congress ignored the Radicals' requests, Kentucky's
strong southern sympathies along with Congress' desire to enforce the Fifteenth Amendment,
providing for Negro suffrage (approved by Congress in 1869, but not effective until the 1870
congressional election) could be enough reason for stationing Federal troops in Frankfort as
late as 1876, Perhaps the barracks were erected and troops located in Frankfort, like the
proverbial shutting of the barn door after the horse has gone; the strategic importance of the
Capital city of a border state might have been belatedly realized.

The need for Federal troops in Frankfort proved to be short-lived. The buildings were soon
converted to private residences, but they still lend a distinctive and military flavor to the area

around the Capitol.
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The National Archives (Washington, D.C.), Record Group No. 92, Records of the Office of
the Quartermaster General 1871-1875.

The Frankfort Commonwealth. November 10, 1871.

The State-Journal. Frankfort, March 31, 1974,
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